1992

Utah v. Thomas Monroe Gray : Brief of Appellant

Utah Court of Appeals

STATEMENT OF ISSUE PRESENTED FOR APPEAL

POINT ONE

The issue in this appeal is whether Defendants' sentence of 0-5 years for possession of a controlled substance, ordered to run consecutive with defendants' previously imposed sentence of 0-5 years for forcible sexual abuse, was an abuse of the trial courts' discretion.

IN THE UTAH COURT OF APPEALS

STATE OF UTAH
Plaintiff-Respondent,

*

vs.

*

Case No. 920200 CA

THOMAS MONROE GRAY
Defendant-Appellant.

*

BRIEF OF DEFENDANT-APPELLANT

STATEMENT OF JURISDICTION

This appeal is taken pursuant to the provision of Rule 3, Title II, Utah Rules of Appellate Procedure in which Defendant-Appellant appeals his conviction from the Second Judicial District Court, Davis County, State of Utah.

NATURE OF PROCEEDINGS

This is an appeal, taken pursuant to State v. Clayton, 639 P2d 168 (Ut. 1981), from a plea of guilty to possession of a controlled substance (58-37-8 (2) (a) (i) UCA), a felony of the second degree, which was entered in the Second Judicial District Court, Davis County, State of Utah.

STATEMENT OF ISSUE PRESENTED FOR APPEAL

1. The issue in this appeal is whether Defendants' sentence of 0-5 years for possession of a controlled substance, ordered to run consecutive with defendants' previously imposed sentence of 0-5 years for forcible sexual abuse, was an abuse of the trial courts' discretion.

DETERMINATIVE AUTHORITY

The following authority is determinative in this case.

A person who has been convicted of a felony may be sentenced to imprisonment for an indeterminate term as follows:....

(3) In the case of a felony of the third degree, for a term not to exceed five years... U.C.A. 76-3-203 (3).

A criminal sentence must be proportionate to the crime for which the defendant has been convicted. Reviewing courts, of course, should grant substantial deference to the broad authority that legislatures necessarily possess in determining the types and limits of punishments for crimes. *State v. Amicone*, 689 P2d 1341, 1343 (Ut. 1984); *State v. Kinsey*, 797 P2d 428 (Ut. 1990); *Solem v. Helm* 463 U.S. 277 (1983).

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

Mr. Gray was convicted of Forcible Sexual Abuse, a third degree felony and was committed to the Utah State Prison. Gray was released on parole and while on parole was charged with possession of a controlled substance, a felony of the third degree, in violation of UCA 58-37-8 (2)(a)(i). On January 21, 1992 Defendant, entered a plea of guilty to the possession charge. The Honorable Rodney S. Page, District Court Judge, sentenced the defendant to serve 0-5 years in the Utah State Prison; the sentence to run consecutive to his previous felony conviction.

STATEMENT OF THE FACTS

On or about November 7, 1991, Thomas Gray was arrested in Salt Lake County and taken to the Davis County Jail for allegedly violating the terms of his probation (R.9). At the jail, a Deputy Sheriff, performing a routine pat-down search, discovered a six inch piece of red rubber tubing with a glass and a white substance

in the pocket of Thomas Gray (R.10). The white material tested positive as cocaine (R.10).

Because cocaine was found on Thomas Grays' presence in violation of his probation agreement, Gray was charged with possession of a controlled substance (R.2).

On December 17, 1991, Gray plead not guilty to the possession charge (R.12). On January 21, 1992 at Grays' regularly scheduled pre-trial, the defendant changed his plea to guilty and he was referred by the court to Adult Probation and Parole (A.P. & P.) for a pre-sentence report (R.17).

At Defendants' February 18, 1992 sentencing hearing, *defendants' counsel presented arguments against A.P. & P's* recommended imposition of consecutive sentences (T.3 and 4). Mr. Gray also spoke against Adult Probation and Parole recommendations (T.5). After hearing argument, the court concluded that the defendant had "long standing problems that are going to take significant time under basically custodial circumstances in order for you to work these problems out." (T.5).

The court then sentenced Mr. Gray to 0-5 years in the state prison and that the sentence run consecutive with any sentence he was already serving (T.5). The court ordered that he be give credit for the 104 days that he had been incarcerated in this matter (T.5).

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

The Trial Court abused its discretion by imposing a consecutive sentence.

ARGUMENT

Defendant has asked his counsel to argue that the trial court abused its discretion by imposing a consecutive sentence.

U.C.A. 76-3-203 (3) entitled Felony conviction-Indeterminate term of imprisonment-Increase of sentence if firearm used, provides in pertinent part, as follows:

"A person who has been convicted of a felony may be sentenced to imprisonment for an indeterminate term as follows:

....(3) In the case of a felony of the third degree, for a term not to exceed five years but if the trier of fact finds a firearm or a facsimile or the representation of a firearm was used in the commission of furtherance of the felony, the court may additionally sentence the person convicted for an indeterminate term not to exceed five years to run consecutively and not concurrently.

Utah Courts of Appeal as well as the U.S. Supreme Court have noted that punishment must fit the crime and that courts should give broad discretion to legislative authority in determining the punishment for particular crimes.

As noted in State v. Amicone, 689 P2d 1341, (Ut. 1984).

A criminal sentence must be proportionate to the crime for which the defendant has been convicted. Reviewing courts, of course, should grant substantial deference to the broad authority that legislature necessarily possess in determining the types and limits of punishments for crimes. Amicone, at 1343 (Ut. 1984); State v. Kinsey, 797 P2d 428 (Ut. 1990); Solem v. Helm 463 U.S. 277 (1983).

Thomas Gray served approximately twenty-two months on his forcible sexual abuse charge (T.3).

In all likelihood, if the court sentenced the defendant to serve his time concurrent, he would have served out the remainder of his original prison term or approximately three years. Those three years would have been given Mr. Gray ample time to deal with

alcohol, drug and other problems that were presented in his pre-sentence report. The Court thereby abused its discretion when it imposed the consecutive sentence.

CONCLUSION

It is therefore respectfully requested that this Court set aside Mr. Grays' sentence as an abuse of the trial courts' discretion.