1992

State of Utah v. Thomas Monroe Gray : Brief of Appellee

Utah Court of Appeals

JURISDICTION AND NATURE OF PROCEEDINGS

This is an appeal from the sentencing determination of the trial court. This Court has jurisdiction to hear the appeal under Utah Code Ann. § 78-2a-3(2)(f) (Supp. 1992).

STATEMENT OF ISSUE PRESENTED AND STANDARD OF REVIEW

Was the trial court's sentencing determination proper?

"Sentencing is a prerogative of the trial court and will not be disturbed on appeal unless the sentence 'exceeds that prescribed by law or unless the trial court has abused its discretion.'" State v. Ford, 818 P.2d 1052, 1055 (Utah App. 1991) (quoting State v. Shelby, 728 P.2d 987, 988 (Utah 1986)).

CONSTITUTIONAL PROVISIONS, STATUTES AND RULES

Any relevant text of constitutional provisions, statutes and rules pertinent to the resolution of the issue presented on appeal is contained in the body of this brief.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

Defendant, Thomas Moore Gray, was charged with possession of a controlled substance (cocaine), a third degree felony, in violation of Utah Code Ann. § 58-37-8(2)(a)(i) (1990) (R. 9).

Defendant entered a plea of guilty to the above charge on January 21, 1992 (R. 16).

The trial court subsequently sentenced defendant to a term of zero to five years in the Utah State Prison, which term was to run consecutive to any sentence defendant was presently serving, and imposed a \$5,000 fine (R. 20-22; Transcript of sentencing hearing, February 18, 1992 [T.] at 5). The trial court then granted defendant credit for 104 days served and recommended that he be considered for sexual offender and substance abuse programs (R. 20-21).

STATEMENT OF THE FACTS

At the time of this offense defendant was on probation from a conviction for forcible sexual abuse, a third degree felony (Br. of App. 2-3; R. 9). Defendant was arrested for violating the terms of his probation and booked into the Davis County Jail (R. 10). A search of defendant's person at the jail revealed the presence of controlled substances (R. 9-10).

Defendant entered a plea of guilty to a charge of possession of controlled substances, a third degree felony (R. 16).

Following the preparation of a pre-sentence investigation report, the trial court sentenced defendant to a term of zero to five years in the Utah State Prison (R. 17, 20-21). Based on the recommendations of Adult Probation and Parole (AP&P), the court ordered that defendant's term of imprisonment for this offense be consecutive to any sentence he was presently serving:

THE COURT: Mr. Gray, I think you are right, you have been before this Court a number of times and I think the Court has complied with the recommendations of Adult Probation and Parole in allowing you sufficient time to see if you could resolve these problems. That has been unsuccessful. I feel that you have long standing problems that are going to take significant time under basically custodial circumstances in order for you to work these problems out.

For that reason, the Court will sentence you to 0 to 5 years in the state prison, order that you serve those consecutively to any sentence you are serving at this time. I will recommend, however, that they will give you credit against that sentence for the 104 days that you have been incarcerated on this matter up to this time. That will be my order. I will recommend that they consider you for the sexual offender program which you might already be in, are you not?

[DEFENDANT]: Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT: That will be the order of the Court. We will remand you back to the custody of the Division of Corrections.

(T. 3-5) (a complete copy of the sentencing transcript is contained in the Addendum).

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

The sentencing issue raised in defense counsel's Anders brief is frivolous. Based on defendant's criminal history and demonstrated inability to conform to the conditions of probation, the trial court acted within the scope of its discretion in requiring that defendant's term of imprisonment for this offense be served consecutive to any previously imposed term.

ARGUMENT

DEFENSE COUNSEL'S ANDERS BRIEF FAILS TO ARTICULATE AN ARGUMENT DEMONSTRATING THAT THE SENTENCING ISSUE RAISED IS IN FACT FRIVOLOUS; HOWEVER, BASED ON THE STATE'S REVIEW OF THE RECORD IT APPEARS THAT THE ISSUE IS FRIVOLOUS AND THUS THERE IS NO REASON WHY COUNSEL'S REQUEST TO WITHDRAW SHOULD NOT BE GRANTED AND DEFENDANT'S CONVICTION AFFIRMED.

Defendant's counsel has filed an "Anders brief" and motion to withdraw which do not appear to be in substantial compliance with the requirements of Anders v. California, 386 U.S. 738 (1967), and Dunn v. Cook, 791 P.2d 873 (Utah 1990). Specifically, an Anders brief, unlike a regular brief, "must demonstrate that the potentially meritorious issues" raised in the brief are in fact frivolous. Dunn, 791 P.2d at 877. Defense counsel's Anders brief is deficient in this respect. For example, he has failed to articulate an argument demonstrating that the sentencing issue raised is in fact frivolous (Br. of App. at 4-5). To the contrary, defense counsel asserts that the trial court abused its discretion by imposing a consecutive sentence (Br. of App. 5).

However, although defense counsel's analysis fails to assure this Court that the sentencing issue raised is wholly frivolous, it does not appear to the State that there is any reason why counsel's request to withdraw should not be granted and the trial court's sentencing determination affirmed.

This Court will not disturb the sentencing determinations of the trial court on appeal "unless the sentence 'exceeds that prescribed by law or unless the trial court has abused its discretion.'" State v. Ford, 818 P.2d 1052, 1055 (Utah App. 1991) (quoting State v. Shelby, 728 P.2d 987, 988 (Utah 1986)).

Utah Code Ann. § 76-3-401(1) (1990) authorizes the trial court to determine "whether to impose concurrent or consecutive sentences." In so deciding, the trial court is required to consider the "gravity and circumstances of the offenses and the history, character, and rehabilitative needs of the defendant." Section 76-3-401(2). Additionally, where a defendant "is sentenced at different times for one or more offenses, . . . or has already been sentenced by a court other than the present sentencing court, . . . the aggregate maximum of all sentences imposed may not exceed 30 years' imprisonment." Section 76-3-401(4)-(5). The trial court complied with section 76-3-401 in imposing a consecutive sentence in this case.

Rejecting the arguments of defendant and his counsel, the court followed the sentencing recommendations of AP&P and imposed a consecutive sentence (T. 5; see Addendum). In so

ruling, the court noted defendant's numerous appearances before the bench and his apparent inability to resolve "long standing problems" (T. 5; see Addendum). Thus, the court determined that defendant required "significant time under basically custodial circumstances" (T. 5; see Addendum). The court then granted defendant credit for 104 days served and recommended that he be considered for sexual offender and substance abuse programs (R. 20-21; T. 5, see Addendum).

Imposition of a consecutive sentence under these facts is in compliance with the requirements of section 76-3-401. The trial court appropriately considered defendant's criminal history and his inability to conform to the conditions of previously granted probation. Additionally, the "aggregate maximum" of the consecutive zero to five year terms does not exceed 30 years. Thus, it was not an abuse of the trial court's discretion to require that defendant's term of imprisonment for this offense be consecutive to any previously imposed term.

CONCLUSION

The sentencing determination of the trial court should be affirmed.